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This cradle was used by Hiram Smith Farquhar,
born in Brooklyn, Hants County, on April 9, 1901,
the son of Mary Agnes(Smith) and James
Farquhar. Hiram was schooled in the Brooklyn
School and Windsor Academy. For a time he was
Municipal Clerk and Stipendiary Magistrate for
West Hants (1929-33) and then was employed by
the Nova Scotia Government as Assistant Director
and Chief of Inspector of Old Age Pensions at the
inception of that program. He , with Erest H.
Blois (another Hants County native) and Fred R.
MacKinnon , was a pioneer in the development
of social welfare programs in the province (1933-
68) and finished his working career as a Judge of
the Family Court of Nova Scotia. He married
(1925) Eva M. Dimock of Poplar Grove, daughter
of Benjamin Smith Dimock (Miller’s Creek) and
his wife Phoebe Brown, formerly of Tenecape,
N.S.. They had two sons, Alexander and Hugh.
Little is known about the cradle, except it was
used by Hiram, his sons, and some of his
grandchildren. His death took place August 1975.
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AVON RIVER HERITAGE MUSEUM
AND HISTORICAL RESEARCH LIBRARY

17 Belmont Road, Avondale/Newport Landing, NS
RR 2, Newport, NS, BON 2A0
Tel/Fax: (902) 757-1718 / 757-3656 (Tearoom)

In order to help the ARHS have as comprehensive a picture as possible of your
donation, you are respectfully requested to put down as much information on this questionnaire as you are able.
. "This will help ensure that your donation can fulfill its full potential in the Museum.

QUESTIONNAIRE FOR DONORS

Date: j; Ly Z é‘ _ZeoH Object names: ___ CR40LE
Name of Owner:i /4 [ex . FA%Q JHAL
(¥ 710)
H vgh é AR Y HAR Phone/Fax

Name of Donor if not the same as owner: A ley ANPEL - FA}’(OUK4K
Address: __ (LLL. 505, (oY [oued Ko /1[,4{41!/7,4%\ N, Boau AL (

HISTORY OF OWNERSHIP

Name Occupation Address Dates / Period

U dpes Sutit Gad R VAR /g0l -26
Qlec. an Hoa & Famavess (226 - [rescat
Who used it? Ll‘('l(f/‘/‘ F/MZQU K44, his SoAS . Sopk AR Cl(LOKc A
How was it used? CAaD [ ’

When and where? }3/29 ’Z/:/A/I, HAM% Co. A{‘I((;{M(r/(@ .

Date made or where it was purchased? b/

Who made it, or where was it bought? r

\¢

or found?

What is it made of? ? i

n\J

How was it made?

Do you have any photographs or other documentation of the artifact? /V o

Additional Comments: /é/




Avon River Heritage Society Museum
17 Belmont Road, Avondale/Newport Landing
RR# 2 Newport, N.S. BON 2A0
Temporary Accession Agreement
Date: Jl—/ Ly Zé_( Zoo4
1 Afoxuger T fadivank__of_Gar. 305, (0w Tonez A9

f(étc(ﬂ}( NS Telephone: /~To2-444 9479

certify that I/'We own the artifact and that I/We have the authority to
donate/lend the artifact to the Avon River Heritage Society Museum.

It should be clearly understood by the donor that the artifact at this point, is
being temporarily accepted by the ARHS. The Accessions Committee will have the
final acceptance decision in accordance with the Statement of Purpose and Mission
of the ARHS and the Accessions Policy of the ARHS.

If the decision is to accept the artifact you will receive the following:

= A letter Thanking you for your donation/loan.

= Duplication donation/loan Agreement Form.

= A Tax Receipt for Federal Income Tax purposes (if it applies in this case).

If the artifact is to be donated and has been accepted by the Accessions
Committee, the artifact will become the permanent property of the ARHS and will
be handled in accordance with the Policies of the ARHS.

/% - %M i \ S £
Signaturefor the ARHS * SﬁgnamW
Temporary Accessions Tax Recgipt Required

QYES [BNO
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William MacDougall

Alexander Bannerman

Albert Ward

Rev. P. Alex. MacDonald

Rev. Lloyd Alexander
Murdock

D. J. C. O’Halloran

James Ferguson
Christopher Gower

Dr. C. F. Keays

Douglas P. MacNaughton
Earle T. Grant

Stewart Hewitt Fraser

REV. GEORGE FARQUHAR

The passing of Rev. George Farquhar in Halifax on June 8th 1975
removed from our midst one of our oldest members, a man whose
colourful career and wide intellectual interests made him widely known
throughout Nova Scotia, and cne who contributed to the life and work
of our Society in many and varied ways.

George Farquhar was born in Wetherby, England, on July 17th
1880, but came to Canada at the age of three. He grew up at Newport,
Hants County, and attended Windsor Academy. He graduated in Arts
from Dalhousie University with honours in Philosophy, and then took a

_year of Law at Dalhousie Law School. Seventeen years later he com-
pleted his law studies and was admitted to the bar in 1925.

In 1910 George Farquhar graduated from the Presbyterian College,
Halifax, and received the degree of M.A. in Economics from Dalhousie
that same year. During World War I he served as a chaplain in the
Canadian Army, and was involved in stirring adventures in Russia. On
demobilization he was called to the pastorate of St. Andrew’s Presbyter-
ian Church, New Glasgow, where he served until the time of the Union
of 1925. He then entered the field of journalism, and for ten years,
beginning in 1927, was editor-in-chief of the Halifax Chronicle. From
1938 until his retirement of 1955 he was commissioner of the Nova
Scotia Board of Public Utilities.

Many public services and activities claimed Mr. Farquhar’s ener-
gies. For 16 years he served on the Board of Governors of Dalhousie
University. He was made life president of the Alumni Association and
was editor of the Alumni News for some years. The Nova Scotia Histor-
ical Society and the Canadian Institute of International Affairs both
claimed him as a member. For many years he was an elder in St.
Andrew’s Church, and for over 50 years he belonged to the Halifax
Rotary Club. He became a member of our Society in 1928, and was our

President in 1940.
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JUDGE HIRAM SMITH FARQUHAR

Within a few short weeks of the death of his brother-our Society
suffered another great loss in the passing of Judge Hiram Smith Farqu-
har in Halifax on August 8th 1975. He had been a member since 1939
and had served as a member of the Committee on Charity since 1959,
and as its Chairman since 1965. He was our President in 1957-58, and
during his time of office the cairn incorporating part of Menstrie Castle
in Scotland was unveiled in Victoria Park.

Born in Newport, Hants County, on April 9th 1901, Hiram Farqu-
har lived most of his life in Halifax. Here he took part in many and
varied aspects of community life. He was an elder in St. Andrew’s
United Church; an active member of the Knights of Pythias; past-
president of the Halifax Gyro Club; past-president of the Halifax Music
Festival, and of the Halifax Branch of the Canadian Institute for the
Blind. He worked devotedly on behalf of the disabled, having a hand in
the establishment of disability pensions and of the Halifax Rehabilita-
tion Centre. For many years he was director of Old Age Assistance for
the Province of Nova Scotia, and was later appointed judge of the
Family Court in Halifax. He retired in 1973.

Hiram Farquhar’s two sons entered the ministry of the United
Church of Canada. Rev. Alexander is minister of First-St. Andrew’s
Church in London, Ontario, and Rev. Hugh is serving in Pictou, N.S.
The latter preached a sermon on September 7th 1975 in Pictou United
Church entitled Things My Father Taught Me. Recalling his father’s life
and influence he acknowledged with gratitude these things that he had
learned from him: the importance of being responsible, the importance
of dependability, the importance of active compassion, the importance
of true religion. So too have we all been instructed by this wise and
kindly statesman among us. *“‘He was not endowed with wealth, but he
was given the gifts of a keen mind, sound judgement, qualities of leader-
ship, and opportunities to exercise his talents and abilities in creative
ways” said his son Hugh. We too have shared in these sterling gifts and
graces, and our lives have been blessed by sharing in Hiram Farquhar's
largeness of spirit.

DR. JOHN WILFRED MACINTOSH

On August 22nd 1975 Dr. John Wilfred MaclIntosh, well-known
Halifax physician and specialist in internal medicine, died at his home
on Coburg Road, at the age of 78. With Judge Farquhar he joined our
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Saturday, August 16,1975 356 Queene Ave.
i Londo:, Ontario

Dear Serah,

I am vexry proud of you in your iuitentions to commit yourself to the achool
xperience for the coming year. Our only concern 1a the intensity of the
uiscipline and the lack of free time involved., Naturally the thought of not
seelng you for several months la a regret to uas and I am already thinking of
Christmas without your being with the family. How nice it would be if you
could mansge a trip home at that time for even a few deys. However, I will
leave that matter foxr a few momenta and bring you up to date on family
doings over the past reek.

Your grandfather ¢led on August 8 (Friday). Hughie phoned me at about 8:30 pm,
with the word. My teurs had been shed 10 days before when he had been taken to
the Nursing Home. His condition deteriorated in a marked way after you and I saw
him in June. He became incontinent and almost comatose. Mum continued valiantly
to care for him with lintermittent help from Red Cross Workers and VON nurses
but he just got beyond her capacities to look after him. He was in the Bursing
Home for 10 daye and got superb care. It is a bemutiful place — the finest of
its kind I have ever eseen. It was also expensive ($2% a day) but there wers plenty
of resources to Jook after that end of things for e long, long time. liowever none
of ua would want him to langulsh as nothing more than a vegetable and his death
was a great relase for him and for Mum and a blessing to the family. Your mother
and I immediately got & plane to Toronto at 11 pm (Friday), stgyed at the Alrport
Motel and winged our way to NS at 6:30 next a.m. We were at Walnut Street by noon.
My mother was really tremendous through it all and I am truly proud of her. She
hes shown a great character through the ordeal of the last two years and left us
with & fine memory that way. It was appropriate that she and Aunt Freds were

.at his bedside when the end finally came. They had just gone to visit, as they
f“ad been doing daily, and he slipped away quietly as they were standing there.

His remains were at the Lindsay Funeral Home which is not far from Simpsons.
~ Mum, Bughie and I were &t the Funeral Home on Sunday afternoon and on Sunday
evening. Your mother was with us there too. Mary Hamilton arrived from Cape
Breton on Sunday and she was with us a2t the Fun. Home in the evening, Cousin
Tillie Brightman (my mother's first cousin - Aunt Annie Brown's dau.) was there
om Sunday evening too. She lived with us 1n Windsor one year when she attended
High School and has always been & kind of big sister to me. She lives in Windsor
now. There were many cellersat the Funeral Home and some. of the tributes to Dad
were very touching. He was quite & guy in so many waye. He had a great humanity
and his life was one of practical service to his fellow man. Though he was not
demonstrative his feelings were very deep for all of us. He never failed me
through these 49 years and was always there as a presence and support and
encourager. He was so proud of Hug ie and me - and of all his precious grand-
children. I only wish that I might be half the father to you &ll as he has
been to me. Your mother and I loved him very much and he made me very proud to be
his son. It®would have pleased him to have 'mede the front page' of the iMail-Star
with hie obituary. There was & plcture as well, He deserved it, for he made a
significant contribution to the 1life and dbetterment of Nova Scotia. He had a
way with him in relationmships. I was touched by she genmuine eadness of those with
whom he worked through the years. They had an obvious great affection for him.
He was the firest executive in the NS govt. to hire a black person — and the firsi
to engege a disabled person. I remember both incldents well. I was moved to see
the disailed man whom he had hired wheal into the church at the funeral., His
@m:eatest efforts were in the interests of the church -~ He was an outstan@ing
._hurchman, but his next love was the Canadian Institute of the Blind. He gave
ire endous energy and time and thought to the Blind and I was agein moved when
I saw a 1ittle boy from the School fewmxthe 1ind in attendance at the funeral.
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Doroth¥ arrived froa Plctou on Sundey evening. She, Hughie,ifum and I stayed
" at the Bethany manse and it made it very convenient. Aunt Freda had arrived from
the USA a few days previocusly and was with Mum on Walnut Street. lughie and I
ittended St. Andrew's Church on Sunday norning. The FPev. Rod dacINtosh, Minister
of Vieltation was peaching. He had visited Dad very often during his illness -
and he came to the house of Sat. evening and to the Fun. Ho .e on Sunday as well,
The weather during our stay in Hfx. was lovely ~ a little mggy, but very sunay
daye. The day of the funeral (Monday) was a hot one. The funeral took place in
the Church, Six of his associates, Church, Gyro, Govt.,friends, neighbours, were
pall bearers. There were spproxiaately 400 at the funeral - a great tribute in
itself. The Session of the Church and me:hers of the Gyro Club sat together.
Charlie Anderson who had been the Minister for 24 Years did the address and Lad
JacIintosh read seripture and prayed. He read & portion from 2 Corinthians and I
was amaxed that oum repeated it word for word as he read it. She had memorized
it somewhere along the line. We sang UNTO THF HILLS and the beautiful hymn-poem
of Whittier...I KNOWW¥ NOT WLERE Milk ISALHDS LIFT
TLEIR FRONDED PAL.IS IN AIR
I ONLY XK:iOw I CASNOT DRIPT
SEYOND HIS LOVE AND CARKE.
Your grandmother picked that one and it was most suitable and happens to be one
of nmy own fevourites. The hymns are the hard part at a time like that - and one
finde he has flashes of re-runs of Dad's life and our 1ife together - like a
1000 snapshots come to 11fe in one's imaginetion. It is a moving time,especially
when there has been love in it all. My mother was terrific, a8 I said. Her
oomnent to cousin Mary was 'He cherished me' - tha- is rather sweet after 50
years and just where the narriage relationship ought to be in its essence. There
1s much to be said for retaining 'to love ané to cherish' in the marriage
promises. Sometimes I think that 'cherishing' almost transcends ‘lovin:' - or
(hgoea beyond it in some way.

dargaret and Don Cameron came down from Sackville for the funeral. lary H., of
course was there...Rita and dau:;hiters - and Harlie and Amy came down from
Kingston, NS. Aunt Ann came down ~ Shirley brought her. Howe was sick that day
but had been around on Sat. and Sunday. The burial was at Fa rview Cemetery
There are 4 plots there. Two of them are occupied by Uncle Geo. and Aunt Rubie
and now Dad. One remains for um. Afterward we returned to Walnut St. where
Freda had prspared a great meal. Don and Margaret, Hariie and Amy, Rita and
girla Jjoined us.

It was not a dad time, alth: sh naturally we had our moments. But we did a lot
of laughing too a&s we recollected 80 many of the good times and the fur times
through all the yeers. hughie and I went through Dad's desk and all his papers
and unear¥hed funny things here and there. We have not seen [um so relaxed for
2 years and she jolned in the laughs too. On Tuesday end Wednesday Hughie and
I apent the entire days getting matters in shape. It meant spencing time with
the lawyer and going to the bark and seversl other things. He and I are the
Executors and Trustees of the estate. We tried to expedite things and set them
up as simply and hel fully for Mum a8 possible. His wlll was straighforward.
The house and some securities are left in trust with Hugh and me and mum is to
get the proceeds from inv stments and use the house for as long a&s she needs it
We also got Mam to make her will - it is simplp too. Hugh and I will fall heir
to everything equally.... this is the simp est way ...and the way I will
arrange my own affairs (I have done 80 slready). There is pleanty of money to
100k after lum the rest of her life with a good degres of comfort — lots to
fﬁcare for any need she unay have. Dad did a remarikasble job in providing for her
" in the light of low salaries through the years.

Your dum and I returned to London on Thursday -~ got that early,early flight

- the mame one Jackie a..d I got when we caze back in June. Thus we were here for
the closing of the Vecation School concert in which Anne had a starring part and
shone with her theatrics se she always does. Ske was Daniel in a musical called
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ACO0L 1IN THE FURNACE". It was rather good considering the short time the had
1o prepare. Anne amazes me and it thrills me to see how exultantly happy age is
in front of an audience. She really hae it for that stuff and I feel ight well
find a career in it. Kathy maede some lovely baskets and just enjoyed Anne's
antlca. She does not seem to crave that kind of participation. Anne has grown
f“treaendously through this summer - is teller than her mother now — and Megan
and 1s qulte the young lady. Donald finishes his stint at the farm on Thu s,
August 21, He will have put in 9 weeks and will have about $600 for it. It has
been a strenuous summer for him - works from 7130 a.m. to 9:30 and later in the
evening, But he hes not complained about it and we are very proud of him. Ge
has all the money he earned because ke just never had a chance to spend it.

He does want to renew his insuarnce for car-drikving though and that will cost
him somewhere between 75 and 100 dollsrs. He also would like to but a few
clothes. I feel that it might be a good idea if um and Hegan visit your Grandfat
Lasb in Wawota. They are getting their heads together and will go in late Aug.

or early Sept. .fegan would like to go 10 dassanetta to visit Gay - and Gay says
that ther: 1s a week's work there for her if she wants it. I do not think she
will have too many regrets at finishing up at the Auberge. She is now making
louder noises about returning to college and UWQO geems to be first on ner list.

I % ink this is wise -~ and certainly more economicsl sll around. Jamie has been
having a good time, I think, playing some soccer,his fiddle, and associeting with
friends. Princeton is frighteni.gly expensive. The total bill for T5-76 1s
almost $7000. He plans to take another vear oi'f following graduation before
enrolling in Med. Sehool. We have not seen much of Alex. You nay know of sonme
of the scery involvement pertaining to his opposition to the 'Western Guard'.

He has been threatened, he 88ys, and has been a bit an-ious about that. I wish he
could vacate Torgnto for a year and get away from whatever danger there :ay be.
That is a viaious and evil thing - a ruthless bunch.

1 bought soaie more cloth-s ~ and so did um. voug Powera had a fire and
““hen a fire sale. The bargains were unbtlievable. I got two beautiful suits for
-uch iess than the price of one. One is a summer 'ice cream suit' and the other
& small-checked black and white pure wool suit of light welght ~ perhaps the
nicest suit I have ever owned{ Your .fum got a co ple of dresses and a lovely
Bveater. I wish you could have b en here to benefit from the sale., It was
fanteatic,

Now, back to your own plane. Your wzother and I approve heartily with only the
Teservations I expressed at the begin ing .f the letier. I had heard of Rudolf
Steiner b fofe - Barrie Cabena had spoken to me often about Antroposophy and
had attended lectures in the USA mt related to it. He had been particularly
inter.sted in Eurethmy (we tried to cet un & 'Four Q'clock' with it one time)
and also the bilo-dynamics related to the growing of things. Last evening :um and
1 went to the Library to locate Ringwood on the map. It is ricely situeted in
relation to London and also Bournemouth snd Southampton,ae you said in your
letter. We glso sought out e9.1e informaetion on Steiner and found some biographica
data on him - You will be interested to know that the girl at the Humanities
desk knew something of him and to0ld us that during the last month many,many
peo le have been asking for stuff on Steiner and Anthroposophy. Isn't that
curous? JShe did not k ow what prompted this sudden interest - but there it is.
That explains why there were so few books on the shelf about the whole business.
The one m® that was there was not %00 iaformative. It waa an ldealistic bit which
he wrote on society Just following World Wer I. I do not know michabout the
IxEwaxy theology of the movement. &£ I would 1like to know where Christ fits in
the scheme of things. If a Chript-centred theology is not articulated in the
#ind °f thing you are doi.g, certainly the Christ-Spirit is evident in it.

. would like to kxw lktnow more about it anyway. We took & little family poll
yeaterday on your decis on. HMegan heariily approves ~ Jamie likewise - Kathy and
Anne quite enthusiastically approve...and it wo 14 be no gquestion that Alex.
would give assent too. We have not polled Donald yet, but I doubt if he would
relse any objection. So it lo ks as ir you have the war: anprobation of us all
in this venture, I guess we all hope that thls does not lead to your spending
the rest of your life on ancther continendx - but the future will taike cpre nf
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It will be an enriching experience for you and contridute to your personal
growth 1n an un,aralleled way. I know how sensitive and loving is your na ure
and I would fear that you may be inoclined to empathize too much with the kids,
‘You must _uard ggzainst thet for your own welfare. You will be plesse go know
that your income tax return ceme back and a cheque for $257.00. 1 have placed
it in a savings account at ti.e District Trust. It will yield 6% interest and
will be a nice little nsast-egg for you. If you need any money thirough the year
you must tell me and we will make some proviaion for you. I do wish that you
could get a Christmas bresk and co.:e home for the holiday. It would be the best
Christmas present any of us could have. -hink about it anyway. I would help
you substantially in 1t. idegen said she was telizing with Athylyn about your job
and she was quite thrilled about it smmx too. I know you will be writing your
grandmother when you learn of Jad's desth. X&thy sent a basket to her Uramaie
by us; Anne sent a cendle she hed made. Zach wrote a note, as did Jamie. Donald
wrote her as well and she was most touched by that. Alex. phoned over the week-
end and they had a chat on the phone. Andrew and Nell were with their muother
and both attended the funeral. I apent some of the spare late-night moements
reading a diary Uncle George had written during his experience in Siberis in
1918-19. ile was Chaplain with the Cenadian Expeditionary Force there and it is
a2 fascinating document. I ho.e to get a copy soue day. Jne one occasion it was
58 degrecs below gero. le travelled through .mchuris and other perts of Russia
as well s# viasiting orient countries on the ship journey to get there. I noted
that on ‘arch 15,1919 he received a letter froa Aunt Hubie whick had been
written Dec. 22,1918, Imagine being out of touch with your wife and family
for such a long time. ./ary and I spent one whole night talking and did noid
get to bed until 5330 a.m. She is still upset about her father's dezth snd
it was good therapy for her I guess - and for me. I can't think of anybody I
would rather chat with for such s time =s Mar . Juite a gal!}

Rod Macdonald called on the phone todey. lie was in the city for a day or so.
He had been at Massanetta and was on his way baeck to Alabams. le was thrilled
at your pla.s and wants me to convey his best to you. He regards you as very
special,of course. e has had recent operati.ns >n his eyes and his wife has
had a back operation. For pension purpeses he will have to return to Canads
for one year residence and is making plana to do that. He will return to ¥SA
after that. fe is approaching 65 now.

I am feeling more and more deeply a desire to return to N.S. I hope that may
be sccomplished within & few years. I am locking covetously at Wolfville
and would like to mettle there for the remainder of my working days. I do not
really want to undertake another large job like FSA. I think I would find it
hard to foous all my encrgles on another large task. I would prefer to have g
snaller spot in wiiich I c:. 1d more intima-ely and effectively relate to the
lives of those in my care. My ambitions for blg things has dlainished and I
do feel that some wonderful things heve happened 40 .e career-wise through the
years - and I have been more fort .ate in that way than most., I am grateful
for 1t all too. “um (your .um) would welcome a return to NS $00. The feeling
ssems t0 get stronger emch time we go back there. [y regret in that regard is
that we might remove ourselves from you kids, for I suspect not many of you (if
:gy) would make NS your houe in the fuiure. lowever we will take things as

ey come.

i thought I might take up 8oae more space and write a brief sketol. of Dad's
life and experience. 1 am doing this letter seven-fold and there will be a
copy for each of you. I feel a need t, put souething on paper - and heaven
knows when I will get sometl.ing like that done. I have a free Sat. afternoon
-and it sho:1d be a good time to get a start on it. At least it will give you
Bome 1-dication of thinga that siaped him — and thus me — and you as well.

I will, of course, leave much out... but it is something anyway..and in
years t. come may be of some interest as you reflect o. yovur antecsdents.

I wish thet Dad hed made some kind of permenent biographical rezcord hisaself
~ he thought about 1t but the years caught up with him too quicily.
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HIEAM So/l9H PARQUHAXR was born in Brooklyn, liants County, MNova Scotia on
April 9,1901 in the family resicence just up the hill from what might be called
the centre of the village. It was a small house and almost directly across the
gmoad(street) froa the Anglican Rectory. .y Uncle iurray Fader {who married my
. Jther's sister, Annie Laura ¥mtmx Dimock) was born in the sa.e house 3% years
previosusly and my cousin EIL:BN LOCH:AKY, dau. of Fletcher Lockhart and Frada
Dimock was born there also in 1923. Fletcher had biught the house fron my
grandfather in the early twenties (or late teens),since my grandfather purchased
the 0ld Weeks house which was on the main road(street) of Brooklyn. He had been
the doctor in the area for any years. It was a large house and the first house
in which I myself (ajf) lived. H.S. was the son of JAHES FARGUHAR (1843-1924)
and ALY AGNZS SM.TH (1860-1356).

JA 18 FARQUHAR was born in Birmie, lorayshire, Scotland. The family home
there was caelled 'TROCHAIL'. You, Sarah, have visited that property,as did your
4o0ther and I in 1968. If ever I secure my ‘dresmhouse' I want Donald to design
a s8lgn to be placed 8t the entrance to the property with that name on it
- 'Trochail’. I do not know what tl.at name means but will find oui sownetinme.

I recall thet my granifather was called 'Trochie' as & boy because of the
place-name, I know little of the Farquhar background in that area but hls
father and perhaps his grandfather were buried in the cemetery near the Birnie
$hurchs The Birnie church is said to be the place of worship which has been
used for that purpose continuously for a longer time than any worship centre on
the British Isles. It 1s a small structure and has a kind of rustic beauty. It
was once the chapel (centuries ago) for a monastry and I understand in late
years that the Monastic order which has resettled in the ximzvicinity has made
overtures to regain the church as part of their set-up. I have been invited to
preach there and Uncle George did preach there at least once in his visits to
fﬁgotland years ago. The 'Disruption' in the Scottish church occurred in the

. ery year (1843) of James' birth. They were 'Free' C:urchmen in that family

and 'came out' froam the established church to be part of the Free Church. Thus
the lovely Birnie Church was not his place of worship through his youth. The
family wae part of the Congregation of the High St. Church in Elgin (3 miles
away) and I have a standing invitation to preach there whenever I happen t0 be
in Elgin on a Sunday. The Birnie area is much 1i e the Nova Scotia terrain in
the Brooklyn area. I have a ways thought that my grandfather would fvel at home
in the new world because of that similarity. iHe was the oldest of his family.
His father ALEXANDER was born in 1797. I assume they were farmers. James had
one brother William and another, I think whose name was Alexander. He had

two slsters of which I am aware and perhaps more brothers and sisters. I shall
¢heck that out in the future. The two slsters of whom I am aware are JAH: and
JARY. Jane was a mid-wife and was 6 feet tell. Mary, it appears, stayed at
home., They lived in Elgin. They died dyr. g my lifetime. I recall their sedding
me a bone sppon with my initials on the handle on & silver pXw=mwre plaque when 1
vas about 6 years old. Dad corresponded intermittently with them dbut Uncle Geo.
kept very close touch through the years untll their deaths. James brother had

a clothing store in Elgin in partnership with his other brother. They had also
a branch in London, England, I believe. I remember there being a 'top hat'
around the house when I wes a kid which had the name of {the atore in its lining.

1t comes to me now that one of JAMES' sisters (name forgotten) married an
0G:LVIE and went to South Africe. That famlly did well finaclally and a
descendent visited Canada in 1974 and got in touch with Jargaret and Mary
Uncle George's daughters). I cen remember seeing the odd letter from that
{ rowd when a youngeter. One time (in 1961) I visited Elgin for the first time.
I met a man ( a coal dealer). He recalled my Aunt Jane vividly - said she sat
all his (and her) life in the pew directly in fromt of him in the High Ch..roch.
St.e delivered thousands of bvab.es in the area and thus was very well known.
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Jails PARGUNAR would have had no more than a graamar school education.

ile wae a large man, alaost 6 feet tall (perhaps ana even & ft.) and big

"in build. I have been told that he welghed near the 250 1b. aark but 4did not
appear to carry that kind of weight. He probably did not weigh that much in
his younger days. I think that he was a bit reddish in hair and beard. lle
was powerful physically which may explain his finding his way eventuelly
into police work. Ee was s member of the counstabulary in England where soie
of his sons (5 of them,l tiink) were born. Donald, the oldest (b. 1872) was
born in the &lgin vicinity. JAMYES married .ARGARET “ACDONALL of Rothese,

a community a few miles from Elgin. I do not «now much about that family
and of course she 18 no blood relation to me. JAMES' mother was SOPHIA
ALLAN. She was a native of Birnie,neny years younger then her husband.

The ancestral home of the ALLAN family is czlled 'The Level' and James

must have spent sany days there 2s a kid and young msn. Connectlons of the
Allan family still live at the Level. I surmise that for some cmnturies

the Allens have lived on thaet sane land. It belonys to the Zarl of Moray.

A Tew years ago opportunity to purchese was given but apparently there was
just not enough money available to buy it. I visited the Level in 1961 and
again in 1968. The only connections I k ow personally now is MRS, SILVISTRI
who 1s of the Allan crowd.

JANMES, as 1 sald, was a member of the Constabulary.in England. I do not
~now how he came t0 become & policeman or what influence moved him to Englan
I wonder if ¥®xr he had been in police work in Scotland before that. I do kno
that he had a hand in the pursuit and capture of a desperado during hils
career. In an o0ld trunk was s bit of a bullet thet 1s sald to have teen
shot in the pursuit of a 'public enemy no. one' type in the 1870's. 1
suppose there would be some records of that occasion somewhere. JAMES
loved to hunt and fish. One story I heard is that he got into some tro:.ble
by hunting on land owned by & powerful man and through some misunderstanding
8 stink was raised and the incident :.e8 soaewhat discrediting to him. I do -
not ki.ow if that is the true story. Whatever the case, under some impulse
in 1883 he moved to Canada. His sons were Donald (b. 1872),James Allan(h.'T4
william, John (5.1878); George (b. 1880), Alex. (b.1883). The family
arrived in Hfx,Y.S. and JAMES had a cousin inbusiness there (quite success-
ful). Through the kinsman, James got work 1lr a tannery in Hfx. I saw a
diary kept by young D nald telling something of thedir first days In Hfx.
and referring to the voyage across the sea. It was childish but revealing
too. I surmise that they llved somewhere in the area of the willow tree
(to the north of it). They had a cow anyway. They did not stay in Hfx. for
8 long time., JAMES negotiated pmrchase of a property in UNION CORNER,

Hants Co. which is stones throw from Brooklyn. It was owned by the kinsman.
He hed plans of meking 1t & fine country estate with riding paths and
such things but did not get too far in his dreams. My father (HSF) has told
me that he reme:bered an o0ld iron gate at the engfance which had once been
at the public gardens in Hfx. Apparentyl the kinsman had bought it or =EEEm
secured it when the garden-gate was replaced.

That property 1is an interesting one. During my recollection it was lived
on by a Crowell famlly The house in which the Farquhar family lived had
burned down some years ago. It 1s rather a besutful plece of land end my
wildest dreams are to re-claim i{ for our family. It is large 1n asize
and was one of the better farsm in the district I ' ink. A good orchard
and conelderable land under cultivation. Part of it bordered on the
Herbebt River. I have walked on the land any times with my father at
vari ue times through the years. I recall also one time being there with
Dad, Uncle Will and Uncle Alex. — snd perhaps Uncle Geo. was with us that
day too. The most notable thing about 1t is that 1s 1s the scene of an
0ld French Acadian village. The rem i:8 of the foundations and wells are
8till there and the vestige of !theold French Robad' still discernible.
The older boys would from time to time unearth 0ld coins of various
denominations and source as they worked the land. Uncle Will had a little
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I remenber visiting Jimmie Greeno's farm many,many times through the 30's and
early 40's and looking at the horse and being thrilled to think it belonged to

us. ‘fum had a lovely flower garden at Brooklyn too. We has a 'summer house'

there - a latice-work structure - and a goodly piece of property. I loved the
f%ouae and remsmber well when we finally sold it in the late 3%0's for $800.

1t was Gran's house and she got the proceeds. She moved into Windsor with us

and was with us all my life fron time to time. Por soze years she would spend

a part of the year with her brother and sister who remsinddg in Brooklyn.

So to Windsor in 1929. We had half of a big double house. Frank and 2Zilla
Antiony, who later moved to ¥ess. lived on the other side. Tliey becanme good
friends and had e son about my age (Eric). I visited them in the US in 1947
when I was at Springfield College. They enjoyed life in Windeor. Church again
(St. Johns) was big in Dad's 1life. He became and Elder and sang in the Choir.
Hie hed swig in St. Hatthew's Cho r in Hfx. and also in .¥ddleton. He had a good
voice and fine appreciation of music. iie did =ome duet singing in the choir and
appeared also in Minstrel Shows. I have a recollection of one in Windsor. I
met have been very young indeed. In Windsor he continued his Knights of
Pythiae (& fraternal organization) association and became equivalent to Pres.
of thet group and held some provincial positions as well. He had goined the
Pythians some years before when working in Hfx. {about 1921 or 22). Beeck in Hfx
he had also joined the Gyro Club. In Windsor,he resumed nis friendship with
Ted heid who by this time had returned fmom pg work in NY. They were very close
buddies and Ted was our doctor. lle was much beloved. He looked af ter ium there
when she had serious bloodpoisoning in her hands and elso took out my tonsils..
I neglected to,metnion that when Dad was working 1in !fiddleton 1918-19, he was
in'a fire. Valiantly he rescued some girl from the flames. In so doing he
caught his little finger in the fire escape and tore it so badly that it hed
vo be ampusated. That explaine his funny 'little finger'. Iie was kind of proud
gﬁf that thomgh. He curled in Windsor snd liked that very much. He slso did a lof
.~ #ork gratis for the Childrens Ald,find4ing homes, delivering children, etc.

1 used to apend some Saturdays at the jall which was .n the bu lding :n which
he worked - the prisoners were very nice to me. Dad never seemed %o incur

the hostility of those whom he fined or sentenced...and he sentenced plenty.

He was busy there - it wes depression times. Qur house was near the RR end wes
a2 marked house. Mum always had some beana on the stove and she fed hundreds

in those days. One cold day we had & fire in the fireplace. I had just got up
aud hed on a kimono. I got too close to the falmes and it caught fire. One of
the hobo's, wno was waiting for something to eat was in the rooii, grabbed me
rolled me in a met and dousea v fleme end saved me frum » vad burn or even
death, Perhaps their kindness to these wander.iu, .en pald off. Never wes anyone
turned awey., Often they would do an odd job around the place,wes. often thoy wo
Just get food. Baeeball was big in VWindsor. Dad was mansger of one of the
teams. Cousin Bugene Lockhart would co e down from the States and played. lie was
a terrific player and made a big name for himself as a kid rhenom pitcher. He
was pltching when 15 and 16 and 17 and was about the best in Nova Scotiam. 1
used to go to the gamee with Mum,and Dad would be at the playera bench ~ I woulc
be there $00 sometimes. Occesionglly we would travel %o Canning or Kentville or
Banteport - and other places too. Murray Fader played also and was & good
pitcher ~ he was a8 natural athlete and as strong -8 a horse., They came back
from the States in the early 30's. Mum's father,Ben,used to spend most of his
time at our house in Windsor but when Aunt Ann came back he would spend more
there. He made that his real home and died there finally at 89, ¥e was a litile
man, not much more then 5 ffet tall. He went to mea at aged 12 as Cabin Boy.

& became a first mate and then became deaf and never became & Captain. e had

- > settle at being a Cook, but cooks made best bay. He gleo had a bad fall and
nad a serious rupture. He was a twinkly man with deep blue eyes and kindly
smile. He read a great deal - perhape that iswhere Mum gets her love of books,
He was alwaye giving his grandchildren nickles end dimes with his blg smile.

He smoked a pipe continuously and his moustache was stained with tobaoco jaice,
‘e saw a lot of this 0ld world and one time Le was away from home for % full

vears (thet was 1894-96) — Imagine! There was great love and warmth in that
home. You have scen evidence of 1t 8mong the madotami — 44 afd17  ooeod ot
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The Windsor days were good days — busy days - famlly days. We did not have a
car there but somehow we got around hither and yomn. Tlllie Brown (now Erightma:)
lived with us one year and went to school. Wilfred Dimock(Fred's boy) was with
us a 1ot as he took h s Grade 10. Lewis Lockhart and Reymo.d were around a

.lot too. We never knew when they would be along for a meal. Dad accepted all of

ghﬂum'a people like his own and we were one big extended family. I had a great

feeling of having big brothers although I was an only child. They teased the
1ife out of me but I liked the attention and they all played ball end included
me occaslnally in & game of catch. I guess I was fairly precocious at 5 or 6
in throwling and catching. Gene was ahero to me and 1 liked thenm all very much.
Harlie Lockhart was 6 mos. older and Howie Fader 10 .oas. younger and we were
gquite close, How was like a brother 1o me,and still is,and Harlie seems very
close 100, I felt that at the funeral. We spent a lot of our little boy time
together., How and Harlle never had that feeling for each other as I did for
each of them. They were perhaps not thrown together as mich a8 I was with each
of them.

So the Wandsor years went on. I started school there and my first real memorie
are attached there. I won't go into that now. um had one or two miscarriages
while we lived there. I think that contributed_to a mild breakdown which she
experienced in th. 30's when we lived in Hfx. I hed my thorat accident too.

Then another break came. Judge Brnest II, Blois was Head of the Sociel
Welfare Dept for the province. e had had Boile contact with Dad in co nnection
with soue of the extra work Dad had done regarding children in the Windsor
area,and apparently had his eye on this young aan. In 1933 the Tories were
licked and Angus L. imcDonald swept into victory. Part of the platform was the
promise of Old Age Pensions. Part of the success of the victory,incidentally,
was the power of th. editorials written by Uacle George in the Hfx. Chronicle.
One day Dad was in Trurs and met :r. Blois by chance at the station. Out of
the blue that huge men(6'4") asked Dad how he would like to move %o Efx.

. Dad was falbbergasted. Blois® said that he had been watching him and felt that
™ > Dpad wes going to do the kind of work he had been doing he might as well de
paid for it. He gave him no assurance though. A man in Cape Breton wh: had run
an election and been licked was after the job Blreis had in mind for Ded., Dad
came home with great hopes bdut did not went to ralse ihen too high. But Blois'
desire prevailed and the offer came to beco e Aasistent Director of Qld Age
Pensions and Chief Inspector of OLd Age Pensions. He was 32 at the time. 1t
meant setting up the whole organizatiosn. It is curious that at the Fu .eral
Home the other day Bill Dunlop & Hfx Lawyermformerly of Wirdsor and longtime
friend of Dad,told me that Dgd's appolntment was not a political appointment.
He got the job, Bill stated,because Rlois felt he was the man for the job and
wented him. That new job started Dec. 1933. Mum was pregnant end not well.
We moved to Three /ile Plains and spent the winter with the Faders. Itbwas one
of the happiest times of my life except Dad was in HfX. a1l week. But he would
co..e hore every Sat night for the weszkend. It was called the 'winter of the
big snew'. He often walked 3 miles from the Windsor station in hip-high snow,
but he rarely failed to make it. He worked teridbly hard - often til midnite,
night af.er night,for thehandsome sum of 2200a month. Howe and I went to the
3 mile Plain school -~ I wae in 3 schools that year - Windsor,3 M«PlL, and Le~-
Marchent in HEX. It was Grade 2. Ted Keld used to visit qulte often. Mum lost
the baby. It was & hard time for her. It was good that Aunt Ann was with her.
Theybhave alweys been closer than breathing and nearer than hands and feet to
each other. Then in May we moved to Hfx. - 158 Jubilze Rd., It was unpaved then
and the dust used to float into the house something awaful. Another phase of
our family life began. _
Ded joined St. Andrew's Church. He was to be a feithful member,Sunday Sch.
(™ Supt.,Elder, etc. for 41 years. le re-joined Gyro,became its P:eaigeﬁé, ull.
- Eqitor and Senior citizenjhe took up bowling -thbifasE Biyi¥eds £2€R°% Be.
employees league; helped or:anize the Credit Uniong played poker with cronies
one niiht & week with a $2 Iimitjjoined North British Soc. and became rres.
later on (one of hils proudecst monents)and entered very deeply into the life
of the community. He was Pres. of the Lédarchent llome and School. And he
worked ver: hard at ris job and became recognized for his ability and hozour.



- -~15~

Qur house on Jubilee Rd. wae 8lac a pariked one for the Depresuion victius,
They would pass all along the line and knock on our door. He always was willing
to provide a bed -~ had an arrangement whereby he gave a chit w.ich when pre-
sented 40 the Salvati.n Army would gain exdtry for a bed and & bit of food.

We had no car of our own in Hfx. but occasio ally he would get a govi. car
for 5¢ & mile. And Boaetimes he would coabine s businesse trip with a pleasure
trip. He was scrupulous about expense accounts. He was very careful to maks
exact accounting for his use of the car and in any undertaking he took for
the govt. In 1937 we had a trip around the Cabot Treil. We took argaret Farg

and Edwins Fulton with us. It was a grest time..glthough the road{treil) was
dangerous. In 19%8 we went to USA. What a thrill. The first 2 weeks of July.
Dad rented a car for that and we took Gram along. I slept with Gram on the way
and Dad of course bunked with Mum. It cost $1 per bed at Lincoln, laine, in &
beautiful home. That's what 1t was like in the Depression. I saw my first
Pro ball geme - Dad, Uncle Harry Dill and I saw the Red Sox in a doublehcader
8 ainet the Yankees. I will never forget that — and the bogtime plneysr I saw
in action that day. Then in 1939 the biggest thrill of all - Mgy 1,193%9 -~ Lugt]
came along. Mum and Dad jokingly always blamed him on the USA trip the summer
before. I had prayed for him as lon ae I could remem:er. Dad and am let me
name him. I chose my favourite name - Hugh = which I first heard in the book
read to us in school. Glengarry School Days. The chief boy in that story was
'Hugh'. The Allan waes the old Scottlsh fanily name., S0 he became Hugh Allan.
1t was a difficult birtkh - he arrived the wrong way. Mum was 39 years old

and there were complications. I sensed that tiings were touch and go but Dad
didn't sey much. I knew he was worried though. The .ay let wes & Snowy day

I recall ~ a freak snow-storm. um got phlebitis and was in hp. for 3 weeks.
Hughie's coaming home wasone of the biggeat in my life. 1 was the proudest kid
in the eity. I was in Grade 7 at Leidarchant School. So the circle of family
love was enlarged..and now the first break had cone. We have been given nany
years together though. There are things that come to mind of those late 30's.
5itting on Dad's shoulders at the circus one day to see over others' heeads.
Going o ball ames at the Wanderers 7ield.eseSat. afternoon at the Family
theatrs - & marathon, two f atures, a seriel, trallers, dartoon, newe - all
for 25¢ — 10 for me and 15 for him....walking to and from church..he wvent
every Sunday without fail...his swinging me along b -side him as we wal ed
with his great stidmz sirides,.. his belng 8o full of the devil,doing silly
dances, iaking crazy feces, mimicing somcone we all knew,8leeping on the
chesterfield while I pret:nded to play basketball in the Jub. Rd. front room,

telling e of the family background....reading together, ffum he and I..wild
Sunday afternoons when Hary Farg., would visit us...walking with Uncle Geo. and
Dad home from church,many,mnany Sundays....going to Hants Co. and vieiting all
the relatives....watch him tease Mum when she was too lazy to go to the bath~
room,naking sesssssss noise that made her want to pee all the .ore...chasing
her .pstairs as she raced up pulling up her dress trying to make it in time
..and him after her goosing her along the way,and her pretending not to like
ite.sofun—times, nutty ti :es,precious timee. He was a great whisiler - all the
time whistling...and he could sleep anywhere,anytine., Ee had very good health
- a couple of under-arm cysts along the way, the odd cold, but otherwise
excellent health. He loved to eat and ik began to show afier he got the car
around 1949-60,and he stopped walking twice a day back and forth to work.

He was full of fun. Gram's presence wag slways somewhat of a blanket on our
1ife together and it was always better when she wasn't there. um was patient
and Dad was forebearing,but he felt a deep resp nsibility to his mother and
before she died it coet him a great deal of .oney to keep her looked after.
He refused to allow her to apply for 0ld Age Pension,even though she could
pass the tleans test. He felt that people would only point the finger to him
and c¢laim that he was ueing his positi n. :e also took Bome responsibility for
Aunt Eliza and Uncle John - that was beyond his obligation, but he did it.




I have often wished that I could take time to do some archeologicel work there
- it would be fascinating. ©0 the family moved to Union Corner. JAMES was not
there very long until he was made a Constable and subsequently dagilstrate. He
was, I believe, an extremely intelligent man. He read Shakespeare and some
é@eology and other classice were among his books. He had a kind of intellectual
" ul-mate in a man named Chembers who lived in the village. I do not think there
were too .any others,outside the Minister, whp would share that aspect of his
interests. His size and Scottish accent set him apart in the community. lHe was
an ardent Crurchman - an 0ld country Presb terian - and was Precentor in the
Brooklyn Church before the days of the Organ. In true old-country style he
stood for the Pastoral prayer. Uncle George used to tell of standing with him
as a little boy, while all the rest of the Congregzation was sitting. It is clear
that JAMES was an individualist. He was somnewhat feared by the Brooklyn people.
That was due in part to his representing the law. He also had a great physical
courage and an unswerving adherence to the law. He feared no man and gave no
man special favour. Parents scared their children by him b saying something
like, IF YOU DON'T BEHAVE YOURSELF 43QV - RE FARQUHAR WILL GET YOU. I have heard
many stories to subetantiate this from Uncle Fletcher Lockhart and Uncle iurray
Fader wiro grew up in the village. JAMES' arch-enemy was the tavern-keeper. Often
he brought that man to court and fined him. The tavern-keeper,whose name escapes
me hated him with great intensity. Once he hired a couple of young hoodlums %o
murder JAES. They jumped him out of a tree near the lMeander River bridge
but JAMES took care of himself,and was unhurt by the attack., For years the
tavern-keeper was hostile to JAMES. Yet when he was on his death-bed he asked
that Squire Barquhar some to iis bed-side. The Squire did so. T!.e man asked for
his forgiveness and then asked him to promise that he would take care of his
affairs upon his death because he was the o:ly man in the community whom he
trasted. Quite 2 tribute to the Squire's character! When the boys were younger
they dared not walk into Brooklyn individually - always at least in pairs -
for fear of being attacked by the village boys as retaliation %o their father.
" always thought that significant.

So the family was on the farm at Union Corner. The sons attended school there.
JAIES was od the old-country mind re farming. ¥ilking cows was not his bag at
al1l. Dad hes told me that the old man never milked a cow in his life. That was
for the women or the kids.

In 1889 his wife took sick and died. The six sons (rangingin age from 17 to 6)
together with JAIES were gathered around her death-bed. One of her decrees was,
'\GEOKDIE IS TO BE THE MINISTER'. And 80 the 9 year old boy's destiny was sealed.
I wonder how the other five felt in that moment when he was singled out. George
was more a house-boy than the others - more proficient in the kitchen,etc. than
the others and perhaps was thus a little closer %o his mother. Alex. was but 6
then and would not be too capable to do anything. co she diled. JAKE was
summoned from Scotland to come and take over the family. JA.ES made it plain to
her that it was her sisterly duty. So out she came and stayed for 10 years.
That would make a great story in itself -~ a wouan plucked out of her own
environment and career (mldwife) to come to 2 lonely farm in Nova Scotia. But
she came and was a mother to the six boys. Then JAMES met and courted MARY
AUNLS SMITE (b. 1860) Letters he wrote to her are 81ill in the Walnut St.
house,l believe. lle wrote well and there is a quaint romanticism about then
which is touching. She was 39 years old (almost) when they were married in
1899. She grew up in Brooklyn,deu. of HIRAM SITH and MARY ANN WOOLAVEB.1
HIRAA SMITH was a shoemaker, a Presbyserian elder and of N.w England stoc<.
JARY AGNES had several sisters and brothers. I rememver well her gister ELIZA

Gwa spinster (1little wouan) who did housewsrk in the USA for years and then:
the two of thea lived together in the 30's in a litile house in Brooklyn.
I remember also Uncle John Smith, her brother, who had a bad marriage and
joined his two sisters in the last years of his 1ife. MARY AGNES SMITH
had worked in her late teens or early 20's in a store in Shu- enacadie
and also spent some time in New York City living with ..er sister (MRS. DILL)
there and helping her with the housework. I do not think she wes employed

otherwise in lew York. I often thought of the change in her 1ife time (96 years)
e e T L T T . et revaont nltvr Fram +the +ime she worked there in the late
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1870's or in the 1880's until the end of her life. She had a good altox
voice, sang in the Crarch crholr and was 'at home' dur. ng much of her early
life. She was the youngest of her family. I have of en wondered if she had

many romantic interests in her earlier yeaers,considering the age at her

. marriaze. She was of the Victorian mould -~ not & warm person -~ a Sabbatraian
a life member of the Women's :iissionary .oclety. such of her life must 2ave
revolved around hker personal devotional life and the church and the usual
commnity affairs. I do not think her merried-1if. experimnce was a very
happy one. Ske glwsys referred to JAES as 'The Squire'. He was harsh with
her - ro gh with her with his tongue on occasion in much the saxme way that
he was harsh with Dad. Dad came along April 9,1901. The Squire wanted a
daughter and I get the inpression that in his disappointment he slmply
left the naming of the child to his wife. Tius the good old New England
hendle AIRAM SIITH FiR.UHAR. I never felt it went with the surnane and Zad
never did like his name much. lle preferred to be called ‘i:i', as did his
friends and Mum called hln that too much of the time. He in turn usually
called Mun, 'Girl' and would adress her in that way in any 'etter he wrote
to her through the years. Bad was never interested in using his nawe when
it came to the naming of his sons and he was not snxious that any of his
grandchildren have his first name.

Thne Church figured lerge in the life of the fam:ly. Often the ifinister,if
a Zwtmweisy Bochelor, stayed with them - for a time anyway. Rev. Dr. James
W. Falconer, later to be Prof. at Pine [111{and ay own teacher) and whose
brother was Oir Robert Falconer (Pres. of Tor. Univ.) was one such inister.
That was away back in the 1890's...when Aunt Jane was lady of the household.
But the Farquhar home was always en opexa house for the clergy,i gather.
¥y srandmother was related to many of the Brookiyn people of course. There
o 15 a pa.tial record of her connections in the Hattie famildy book whlech is in
. mg possession, She contributed a great deal to the i foraation which is there
compiled by old R.¥. Hattie. I remember uls coming to the Jubllle Rd. house
often in the 30's in search of meterial about Gram's connections.

So Dad besa. his life in Brooklyn, surrounded by many relatives on his
aother's side and prec:ded by six half-brothers. Alex.,the youngest was
18 years older, so he did not remeaber them as anything other than men.
He went to school when he was 3 or 4 esre old. lie was taken to school on
his first day by YILDRED #82K, whose mother, later a coluunist for the
Liants Jounral as M.E.C., was housekeeper for tke Anglican HMinister. iildred
later merried Fred Campbell and lived in Windsor, and when we lived 1ln that
town from 1929-33, idldred .ived directly across the sireet on Wentworth 3t.
and 1t was a kind of second home to me. . have always had affection for her
and visit her when Ican. She livea now in Scotsh Village, Hants. C. Her son
Ronnie was my earliest 'test friend'. She was always & kind of 'big sister'
to> Dad and very fond of him. She herself has always becn a rather 'special’
person -~ and did ploneer work in Windsor in working with handicappea
children. She had no formal education but a great human heart and practical
mind and good intellifence. Dad was not pertlcularly distingulshed in his
acadenic gareer. Two old school pic-ures at home show him in his bare feetl.
}ie had big,proninent ears but wes rather a cute kid. Fughle resembled him
a great deal as a child. He rec ived harsh ireatment at home and not mach
warmth was there. lie has told me of his father's treastment of him with
tears in his eyes {one day when he waa in his 50's). It was not 'ncomaon for
him to be taken to the woodhed - for very minor offences. ~ and the worst, he
(™ told me wes the tongue-lashing that his father would lay on him. This would
happen often when they went fishing together,for the Squ re was a fishing
enthusisst. Dad never cared much for it and was forced to go along. If her
cau;hit his fishing-line in the bushes or was slow in eeping up with his
father he would get a lecture on his utter stupidity snd dullness. I have
often wondered how he survived it all without developing an immense infer-
iority complex. 4dum and I always agreed that at least the treatment he got



L

. his willi: He was

I haye ever heard

‘H'EB Tt E‘u

ln-g-l—

. was mmmmitEmix consiptent = He knew alwaye what to "&xpéut_. 1t is hard 1;6 be-

1ieve that in all his boyhood and youth his father never gzeye him so much &8 a

- one-cent pleve to spend for himself, This is even nore gruel when one realises
I-,—i-th&ft Dad,from the time: he could do work, helped with thevfarm, milked the cows

twice daily, and in his lust two or three yesrs of school sgtuall kepi the old
Union Corner farm going. The Squire held on to that property efier moving down

* into the willage, It is significant that he pold the fs ‘Ammediately after Dad

left Home, By this time (1901 or so) all the other boye, left home. Donald,

- . the oldest, ‘lived .on the Union Corner farm and.ran it untll his death with TB
in'1906 at the age ©of 34, When going through Dad'e things the: other dey I cane

",

across Donald's pictire, I+t was taken when he wes sickin-bed before his, death.

“It'waa one of the most stertling experiences of ‘my 1life, I thought it was & .

pieture of myself at firet glance. I'showed 1t to the people who were vat. the

' 8t 1 : .
" house ‘then gnd--'e‘ué'h' thought it was me — 8o did all our kids when I brought

it home, Itkls unccanny. I shall see that our Donald gete that picture of hia
nBmesekes You will have to see it for yourself %o balieve it, Willlam had gons:
off ito the USA, as hed Jim and John. George was at various stages 0f hAle

“University career and Alex. had gone west, The‘latter had got in bad with nis

father. He was Tebellious,mischievous in his fe¢n years, Drank ‘arlitile and

even stole some money one day from his father before running away. It is' @

interesting that when Uncle Will left home he said he would ‘never. be backj . -
with Alex. it wes the Bame,..and so 1t was with Dad. When he took  off for the
benk in the spring of 1918 he was pretty sure that he wouldn't be coming back
~ but he ' did,.at hie mother's bldding. They had strong feelinge ageinst thelr

‘father 'which seem %o me to be justified. He was gtern,unrelefting and most

demanding. He restmained the boye too. Whi e under his ocere and roof they
did not have nany privileges — e.g. use of Borse and team for thelir own pur=
poses,etc. (Incidentally, the Squire had the fagtest horse -in the willage)

% But once they left home:and game back the attitude cha ed: right around. They:

were 'men'.then and ‘could 1live their own lives. 1%t didn 4 matter how late tha'.'r

_stayed out or when they took the horse ~'or where they Wents Buc was the .
“gxperience with Will and Dad - and Alex. %oo, ‘altiiough the regonpiliatdon with

Mex. was rather peinful. The SBqu re made & reference Yo' Alex:! 1ife even in .
ﬁ earlier times a dimeppointment to him,: ‘However, nowW 1 fry

to get the whole thing’ into perspective, How bareft he mat have been to lose

hig wife in her-40's with six'gond on his hands, . One of<the ‘boys came around

the bern one dayshaving heard what sounded like & voice. He found the Bq__u;_'_r_gr-

on his knees praying f£or his six aone, That is one of the. most , touchlng scene

ﬁ'—,‘ ‘“hen mll-those years without a wife - and then marriss

- which was not a love-match in eny romantic senfe, And-then losing his olds

and ‘perhaps’ best-loved son, Donsldat 34 and Ttwo yoers:later another son Jo

at 30 by mooident in USA. ALl those things would affeot & man and hie fens

too.  And “to heve a son at 59 years .of .age would puta lob vofdletence bet -

the two, And surely the Squire feltithe idolation .;ﬂ}a;‘qh';@lﬁj...-L-.'&Ed'&*_j_:a'd_ Him
at’tith&e 5f the community in hik 'official’ posi ion lle fined 8 Aot of
and was _unj.-fa;mu_kj* ;qg;-qi.,é Ry bt e VIR i -
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‘5o Dad.Jmey his brothers omly B’ they’ came home from “bine to. tine ek

did- not remember Doneld ‘whix'died when he was 5. = nor Jehn Who' was hk_il AT
“$ut he was yery proud of them all, They were ell handeome men .. -
J,Eg keen intelligence. “Donalll“wag Bled & "Gore oo
wig $hoa.biggest of Thelsix boys = slx Lo oo

plotures show and ‘each ha
worked with the Bguire. Fe:

‘renowned ‘Tor his:strength And.ability %o.take cere of himeelfy ie -
i:_iab]_.-p_..?’eqm;ina_..;mqq’ dngean arrest, ep wam the Sguire. He ‘wae ' :
‘nos rens. Bothhe'a sﬁﬁﬂ-ﬂhﬁt&i:ﬂm atahort  time oL leRn i it
kot SR i

:I_,ll:i,-'thlg Union Corner house. e was B fine man, a%5d &n elder in ¥ ;
%411 1dved and workedidlmithe US: for some years — became @&l
skilled in that,k:_!,rufs_;.-_cr_f;'fthiﬂgp ‘He had . a clope girl-friend whor . ..
for .2 reasona (&) She Wae R o (b)) He undertosk %o parstfor b rvigw
family after his deaths He really took' care of them —-wife & '
until they were able to look after themselves. It was & mnt’
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Then, in.the 1920's he pame back’io Hrooklyn for.a while and met & Bchool
teacher BETIY SMITH, from Maitland. She and Mum were iriends and - the four of
them 'courted! together, even though Will was 25 yesars older than Dad. Will and
Petty merried,moved to Vietorla,B.C. and had ‘& great life together. ; :

= JAMES ALTAN, second son, went to:the USA ' as well, He,Will and John centred a%
.eetbors, Mass, George worked around there the odd 'summer and go did Alex, ..
Jim wes in the Spanish Ameri can war and I have heard it said that kheh he jolned

. up:he wee & pérfect physical specgiman and had every toothiin his head, lHe was
atocky and strong. }%ﬁ_d loved him - he was full of stordes and a’very werm mER.
He mar:ied in the Btates and had 4 kids. I remember him well. A superb story-
feller and full of fun. s funeral was thelergest in living knowledge in Weat~-
boro, though he had never distinjguished hinmsell profeseionally. ‘He had no formal
_education ‘andiworked around the factory, did garpenter work, and then woxrked in
8 Boye Reformatory later in 1ife, He was an especlally human ‘man with no eide to
“him. JOHN went to the Ltates and. was killed in an acgident in the box factory

where: he worked at 30 years!of age, He was mangked in the machinery: -He left
4 small-children...and Unele Will sesumed thet ra;apnn_.ai_.b}.’-itgi;-l ohn wae full of X
the devil, I guess, and Unéle George elways c¢laimed him as his favourite brother
GECRGE, of course had ‘a distinguished career which I will nat dwell on here. I
hope that one of his daughters will write & sketch abosut him somctine - and if
1%+ is not done, I will ‘try to do something myself in “the fture. He ie one of the
most outstanding eitigens Nova Sgotia has yet produced, ALIX. was Degd's favouri
brother,although Jim and Will would be close seconds. Put after sll is sald End’
done I suppose he was closest to George because they knew each other better,

and in leter 1ife he became very fond of him. George .always looked upon Dad as

"1ittle brother'and perhaps Dad rveganted that some. Alex. 'married a Brooklyn

girl ELIZABETH BAXTER, end fimally began praciicing law in Wi rinipeg after 3

: {ears_a't Delhousie. He had gone out west after the.'incident teworked at farming,

4n a birck yard and taught school  (Hlm Creek) &nd decided:on _iﬂw;ﬂ_ﬁ:i;gar. - He

wworked his way through vy working on the ftram card. in Boston in the summer “time,
.+ 411 ‘thepe men ha phenongiisliménories - known as the . ' Parqubhay memory'. Dad
“4h&d 44 too - and Georgels daughtery laty, hag 1 -,au:;ﬂill:ﬂ:;;-&ﬁgg it %o a lesser

“degree. But. thelr ability to remeunber in idents, péople,events, quences, ‘con-
‘yersations, stories,géneologles, is oustanding. Dad wes llke areomputer An that
kind of thing. He always got thinge staright - snd remembsredifhe I ah 1ine'.
He wag great story-teller, saslly as good as any of his brothers,and ‘they were
2ll good, It was fun to'get them all togéether, or someof them, &nd have them
‘mateh atories. Jim and: gll were perhaps best; buf Alex. ted s drematic flalr
too, If/was an experience to hear them, Dad was intensely proud Jof his brothere

4 sund they were fond of him too. And thomgh he had’ Zood rTeason to resent his
‘own father, he:did not.vand held him in great respect. He elways told me that -
yhe tried to treet me the way he wishéd he had' beén treated by ‘hig own father: Ti
" pringe teare to my eyes ag I write that because-he:was go kind and patient ...
end Torebenring. He stmick me but once in mylife and: I 'sure desrved it — and =

:,F:x,_'nie raised-his volge to me only a' half dosen times, . and’ alweys I ‘desrved much

" e Y
!

i mord. Ee wed good=natured and even in QLED0 8L BL D R i Bl oo v T/t S

L% Ded s ‘career-in the Brooklyn school wes not “dinglnguished, I woild like %o ..
" 421¥ ‘Boredey With persons wio were school-mates and ‘ged some’lupreasions froa
them. lie was al lnown BB H'arm in Hanta Co...not Hiwram. He had freckles a8
dota kid, ee did '-,E:%gle,_ and unmanageable hair lﬂq_%;. He was. a blond youngster
Land'later his hair was dark brown. Ié had pale blud-grcedeyes “never had o

- yery good-sights Wore glesses since teen-age.years. He was tallisl Eﬂnfg_ j BB
e kid and: rdﬁ%ﬂd» ﬂfﬁ'ﬁﬁpnu-ﬁnﬂ snehalf ﬁhhea_;_ﬁa’t_ twa#_‘-hii;'_.;*'ggﬁhlﬂg iaye '
and he towered over moet people. He' was big boned'— blg feet and big hands
- not particularly athletlc becauss he didn't have wuch of & chafce, 1 gueas
~ he'played a 1ittle Dball me a kid and ‘one time high~jumped at’ a pienic at.
‘“Meander and cleared five feet. Not bad forrone who had never- jumped before.
He sure did & lot of walking though and through his Teens twenties and: thirties
was ra her on the thin side — that made him acem taller than he wass.He
thought he was &' good-looking man, &8 he would ey playfully ftp Mum in earlier
veara. I'% A PRETI  COMD=-LOOKI“' PELLER AIR'T™1I: And she ‘would ‘agree.
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S Mam was born in Miller's Creek, 5; miles from Brooklyn on. Jan, 21,1900, &

She was born EVA MARY DIMOCK, dau. ‘of BENJAMIN ANTHONY DI {00K AHD.PHOEBE. ..
HROWH. The Eiwsmxks Dimocks came froo Connecticut in 1759 end were fairly
distinguished. I will write:moasthing of that inlater years, Mum was the
wungest of 10 kide, Unti) 10 she Lived at the Mllers Creek 'place and then 1t
. &'Bold b the gypeum' company and. Ben bought two properfles in Poplar Grove:
acrosa ‘the road from esch’ other. One was given to Willism, ‘oldest Bon and
the other. eventually.went to Pred second son, Will's ].Jlai:rﬁ had decades before
belonged %o the Smith family (releted to Dad's mother!s people) = it is the .
house I'have i mind for s dream—house = 1% hes dual contecti’n with us = both
through the Bmithe and the Dimocks. Mim attended the 2w Poplar (rove school
(started at aged 7 — wa# in Grade one in the morning, grade two in the ariernoor
and in grade 3 the.next morning - she had been taught %0 reésd and write.at home
by older sieters). The day of Mam's birth was one of the worst ®torms in 1iving
history, I.recall:Unpcle Will telling me about that with greag - gustd, for he was
the one why was' #ent to btring the doctor — Dr: Heeks. Having Becured her grade
nine at the Poolar Groye school lum went to Erooklyn for Grade 10. She lived .
with her sister Bessle (lirs. Ernest Lockhart), That year she and Dad were in'
the same room, alt otigh Dad wae in ‘Grade nine. He 'temaed her and kind of had o
a crush on her then, but she didn't pay eny attentiom. They were in a school
pley together and of course ghe remeabers him well. Pad went on to High .
delipol in Windsoxr — hed to' go byxtrein each day. The femily had:family devotior
wwice daily, morning and ‘evening. If the Squire's scripture passage was extra
long, "0r he prayed longer than usual, then Dad sinply miséed the train, He was
not allowed ‘Yo . misa’ tiose prayers and that seriptire...he missed a good number .
of days. Also, when attending High School, he had to do farm-work,.In busy =
seasons hie school Tesponsibilitics came ‘Becond and he was Eept home 1o do the
work, He has told me often'of lonely Saturdeye hwne after doing the ustaul - ==
choreg, he would be 'given a lunch and: sent to the farm for the'day, ‘fencing or ! -
heelng or planting, In epple seasou, planting.meason; ‘etc. he was' juet kept
. ae, Thus his scHool work euffered. He failed Grade eleven twice = 'gso gll ..
he hed was & Grade ten eertificate and that wes not of & Yery high standard,
We heve oopies of those high school results — pretty sad.and not vex i dnddcative
of the ability that was latent in him. Desplte irrégular attendance he took . .+~
g greet interest in the cadet corps! end rose to be Ceptain. lie was very proud of'
that. It ds & tribute to His leadership ability,even thep. If the war had :
lasted longer he would have been in it and had a good;chenge’ to try forem ... |
officer's ‘poat with that chdet training and record belind him., Ag it was, he '
did ‘join up one mornin’ ‘while'stiil in High Sehool, Yt his father fotnd out
and got him out:ihat wery day.. Il have often thought.of how his life would have
been changed . by war experience if hie little pley had worked that.day. In' '

Dec, 1917 he ‘and & few other of the pgadets were ent %0 Hfx. for 'a day or Bo;
help elean up' the debris and aid the wounded in the lifx. Bxplosion, He saw some .
gemesome things in that experienge.’ Turing his boyhooed he-gmoked = started at &
on leaves and enjoyed smoking ell his life until hia stroke. Of courde sll that .
es & Jid 'wap done on the sly snd net eontinually, T do. not remeuber who hias boy =
friends were — schoolmates, 1 suppcae, and cousing in Mieherviile nemed Anthomy,
le and Mum are related at least 5 ways. The nearest is about i%rd cousin,onee i
removed. The anthonys suk ere commpn relations. He hbd#told me how he used o er.
going to Hoele Fish's House — she wes a spinster 1ady in fhe ¥illage and was &’
£00d oooks Uhe wae.a friend of Gram and Dad slways viesited ‘her when posaible... .
He &léo B"g‘gnt_.‘.t_ihﬁ with ‘the Dills (Grai's sister married s Dil1) and. would go. tc .
Hosherville from time ‘b0 time to visit the Anthonys (Grans sioter Ella married .
Ben“Anthorny, ‘a-storied rigure). His cousin:Auetin was killed at Courcellette :
and ad: admired him i~ probably his closest cousin'~ only & few'years older. Thai
.U de Bn :l.n%z_'.i_:_n_ﬁ:_lnn-'ppp;i?h#:fq, “He wept about 1t when we telked of 1% in Nov. 197.

rien ‘the stroke haditakeén & toll shd hie pontrol leveltdf lifa emotions wae low. "
He told of ﬂ‘_l_.‘ﬂ.:llﬂ.ingJ ‘at’ the Hix dock waying to @eorge and Austin who were off « =
oyersesson the same shilp .He and hig father stood there together and 1t 'was z
mamorable moment for him. 0 o : Jhn L e R VI A M TS

Dad worked hard in.a phyetcsl way as a kid, He tramped to the Union Corner. :
farm twice & day to get the oow and then take her back. Hemllked twice daily an’
when e dddn' RFle marnthar d48. Te A43 511 e oevwdeantine Faa. DR e werhame oW



plains why he felt a distaste for even digging in the gerden and his
reluctance ever to live in the country. He loved Hants Co. and visited when-
ever he could but the farm=1ife and ell it involved was not for him. He had
just had too much of it me a kid, 5o in the spring of 1918 he went to id-
dleton, N.5. to begin work in the Dank of Commerce there. They were happy
days for hi , He got involved in church affairs,ploys,young people of his own
age and had a freedom he had never known., His father had been restrictive
~ prnge he was in & pley being put on by the :Mnister's wife (ire. Irving)
in Brooklyn and hie part involved ssyin 'laan' and his father insisted he dro
sut. That must »ave been tough for & teen—apger to take. Tut when Dad returned
home ‘from Middleton that first tice later in 1518 the whole tone chang:ed, Ls
wag a "man' then = an his own = and his father reepected that. That came as g
surpriese to Dad and perhaps warmed him a little blt to his fether. In
Miidleton he drank his shere of apple clder and in innocent-way and probably
enjoyed the company of the girls and had & great tiue. Back in Brooklyn the
only girl=friend I ever heard of was a Tosier girl who lived in Hewport Corner
and why later married an Archibald and was the mother of Connle Archibald
of Truro who was a class-mate and friend of mine at Dalhousie. I stayed at
the Archibald home in the spring of 1944 and Firs. A. told me of Dad taking her
home one night = a long way -— fro: some occasion in the villege. I visited the
Ara ibald home more than -once af er thet and Hra. A old always had & .
kind of warm feeling for me, I zuesa. While at Hlddleton he anjm& the work
of the bank. e was good with figuree and had a very tidy mind. Ile wae in on
the sateblishment of a branch at Xingston, a village nearby, and that was al-
ways a matter of pride with him, From dddleton he went to Parrsboro and
wag there a ghort time. ke had a good time there too, 1 think. Then ke went
to the =ain brench in lHfx. and lived in the bank quarters above the bank at
the ‘orner of Granville and George St. In sumacr months he lived with a

roup of young me at lelville Cove and those were great days for Dad, 1 1

ni he had one serious romantic attachnent at least before he end fum got

together. I do not know what her mmxxiw pre-sarris;e name was but she later
' ‘beceme Mrs. Currie and lived in Bridgewater. Her son, Wilfred, went to Pine-
huret Camp at the same time I did snd he turned up at Dal with me too. Dad
told me that mueh abbut her once but no more. lie spoke of her as the woman

'] slmost married'. PFollowing the bank experience, he got a job at the
Helifex lierald and had something to do with the oirculation de; t. He was not
there long when hie father began to fall and his mother urged him to come
home to Brooklyn. He quit his job and did so Lecause he felt 1t was his
reeponsibility to look efter h e’ father and mother in' thelr old age. He
wig 22 years old, 80 he went back -to care for the horse and cover goae of
his father's work. When his father became incepacitated as Magistrate Dad .
was given the eppointment. He was the youngest 'agistrate in Ganada, perhaps
the yo ngest ever appointed in this country. 5o at that tender age he was
holding court. We have two record booke at Walmut St. which have his cases
ehtered in them. It is interesting reading. In addition to these dutlies he
became interested in the telephone company (helped orgainge it locally) and
the pame for the Fydro company..oede wills for people and such things. Aleo
read meters and collected taxes, Somewhers glong the line he and lum met up
agein. I think it wes at the railway stetion, Dad was smitten — um wamn't
gquite oo emitten. However the reletionshin’ developeéd and ended in marrisge -
on Aupunt 18,1925 with Uncle George officlating at the apPoplar Grove Church.
‘um had teught one year in Three (' e Plains 1917-18, attended Normal Hchool:
in Truro and did housework for board and room, taught a%t Fort Lllis (near
Stowiacke),Alton (eleo near Stewinmoke), ‘Eroinlee, Sapk (an experience which
ie s story in iteelf) Woodkawn, }Hfx.Co, and back in Brooidiyn. . Dad's father
died ‘in 1924 ‘(hardening of the arteries): He pnd is mothWer lived n the
Weeka house and ‘then after merrisge they lived in different parts of the
house = ¥um end Ded in one part amd Gram her sister Eliga and brother John in
another, Dad loved Mum's mother Phoebe Dimock = porhape felt. even more
warmly to her than to his own mother - and Phoebe loved him, Indeed all rum'e
family have always treated him like their own brother and Dad was very fond
of them, It was & w nderful reletionshin, Ted did not reelly have a Bteady
job when firast married. They got & bad start in a way. His best friend wae
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AR. (Ted) Reid, older brother-of Dri Jim Heid. Ted wee unmarried and lived
next door to Dad in Brooklyn. He was his best man at the wedding. During the
 ceremony somepne chopped Dad's par tires with an axe and -that was the spectacle

4 when they emerged from the little cliireh. Dad was flabbergested and Ted told
“"rim to take his oar — so off they went on theilr honeymoon with a borrowed car
- they went down through the valley and always. talked about passing thro.gh
Paradise, near Bridegtown, and reselled that they were-held up on.the road
by a bunch of mogs --wﬁﬁ' were in the way. They laughed Bbout-fipding 'plgs in .
paredise’, 50 they settled down in Frooklyn. Mu gotia little ‘substitute
teac ing and had & little money steshed eway end that helped them somewhats
Ded.studied & 1ittle law by correspondence buf was; not all that diligent
in 4%, Yum wes ‘alwaye encouraging him to improve himeelf, bui Dad liked %o
loaf around and talk tm with the villaege crowd and exchenge stories snd did
not have great ambitions at all. Indeed he had high hopes one time of gettlng
a eteady job when the Postimaster's Job became avallable. He-applied but 1%
wae given to a 'returned' man. He was Teally diesappointed about thats.’. = .
He wap always inédrested:in politice and the family‘was flercely 'Liberal’
A'nelghbour and eronie’{domewhat older. than Bﬂ.ﬁj*-ﬂqﬁ Znoch; Hennepsey, Enoch
was e relatively succesiEful businessman and Lloyed nmany ‘of the men in the -
village in thewoods and saw-mill, etc.'le wabg B@lso 2 bigiIdberally He and Dad
talked msbout politice a lot and Znoch felt Dad mipht heve Tu'lure in that srea.
Sp Dad Tan for the Municipal Council — and lost his’dépoeit. That Tixed him
for politice altiough hie sentiments were alweye stirongly Liberal. Enoch was
the man who taught me my first sentence,..It wae. 'I'se a Grit'. So Dad
. continued reading meters,collecting taxes,holding court (in our front roou)
“.and organizing ithe'telephone company. Sometimes he made less than a dollar a
day, He;came %o know West Hanis Co, like the back of his hand. lle knew who
lived in each house on all the country roads and in'the back woods.'— and he
. knew. whox made the'best cup of tea end rolls and ple, étc, and managed %o
sohedule his visits sccordingly. lle waﬁ_,wall—llkaﬁ-’-'ﬁvi&:jﬂifha:‘é'.--T]:;an.in 19267 =
1 wae sbout to.errive in Sept. Bad became very 111' in ihe summer and goon had. -
i3 pneunsnia, His f#lend Ted Reid did everytiing he'cnild for him and then told &
“Mun" there was just no hope. e was near the end. It he] ‘enddn - that Ted's broths
er. Jim haed just graduated and ceme to be with, Ped: for the summer with asview

to taking over the practice while Ted went to New ¥ork for poai-grad woxrkes s
Jim hiad’ Tearned -in' college of some new freatment Bnd-tried it-es a lest— &
ditch effort. Mirssuleusly, it worked, and Iad waﬁ-jg_ﬁﬁ_&'._:_-_'_I'hat'-_.wn'h'-n--npn_‘l:h*;{::'f-ﬁ;
before I'wae born., Mum and Aunt Anni( then mot merried) nursed him around .
the glock(no wonder lad cared so much for Aunt Ann) end that-helped t00, - -
Tt $ook some months for him %o.bounee back, but he.dids le realized after that
‘wwexperienee that he must provide for auch eme rgencigs and began to but dLife .
' insurance. He over—did 4t in his’ anxiety and we wers'for some years ' . -
- insurance-poor. I can understand his concern Hholgh el S e Tl S L
A break came for him in 1929. He was '-appaint&dﬁ,_gga;‘;ﬁﬁ?k@miﬂipal_ LLexk of
West Hente and Stipendary Magietrate. Thet gave ‘hind & 8teady job and the hand-
sone sum. of $100 & month salery. We moved info Windsor;then, While et Brooklyn
7 Dad hed been aotiye in the church and on the Johool Boaxd '(Beg'y) and had the
“"Roy. Saout troop. He and ium had good: friende thexe — dhe -best of whom were @
Jim and Mildred Reid. He wes there as the jbun.g"".j'br_i:‘tﬁr_{nn&"_ brought me into the
"I#E‘.I-I'_lﬁ..""ﬂ_l'ﬂ% played carde a lot and had-great-timess We. had ‘an . old Model T i . 0
~ Ford car. Dad wae & poor driver always. ut alyays.zot thexre and ‘backe ..
“We wisited 'd'lot = moatly to Mumls resltives f'fﬁ__‘ganiﬁ L ;
Brooklyn deys: Dad ‘was a Commigsioner to the Gener _Council of the Church -
megting in Winnipeg. That was a highlight in his life — hie ' first real trip
= exoept for B jaunt to Massechusetts once when he was a:kid(he and his mother)
It gave him & chance to see his brother Alex. end soligihing of the larger
world, ‘He was on a commitiee that worked out a sectio. “of. the manuel{lew
book) of the Church, and he was very proud of the conixibution he made to that.
i That kind ofsthing. was his oup of tea. He would hava"-'mgﬂj'ut_.mﬂﬂ lawyers
“THe house in Brooklyn wag & bip one. We'had a garden: whidh. 2d. planted and
Kapt. We had a horse ooy~ Jimmie, The horss "_'ﬂgﬂl:_i:h;i;_i-f%i-ﬁ-fﬂrﬁﬂ wes well
into his 30's when he died. Jimmle Oreeno, & friend 'of Dad toolk tHe horse and:

8y efcs During the .
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- I remember visiting Jimmie Greeno's farm many,many times thirough the 30's and
early 40's and looking at the horse and being thrilled to think it belonged to
us. um had a lovely flower garden at Brooklyn too. Ve has a 'summer house'!
there - a latice-work structure - and a goodly piecce of property. I loved the
@wouse and remember well when we finally sold it in the late 30's for %800,

4t was Gram's house and she got the proceeds. She noved into Windsor with us
and was with us all my life from time to time. For sonme years she would spend
a part of the year with her brother and sister who remaindéi in Brooklyn.

S0 to Windsor in 1929. We had half of a big double house. Frank and Zilla
Antiony, who later moved to Mass. lived on the other side. They becamze good
friends and had a son about my age (Lric). I visited them in the US in 1947
when I was at Springfield College. They enjoyed life in Windsor. Church again
(St. Johns) was big in Dad's life. He became and Elder and sang in the Choir.
He had sung in S5t. iMatthew's Cho r in Hfx. and also in :Hiddleton. He had a good
voice and fine appreciation of music. iie did some duet singing in the choir and
appeared also in iinstrel Shows. I have a recollection of one in Windsor. I
mst have been very young indeed. In Windsor he continued his Xnights of
Pythiae (a fraternal organization) association and became equivalent to Pres.
of that group and held some provincial positions as well. He had goined the
Pythians some years before when working in Hfx. (about 1921 or 22). Beck in Hfx
he had also joined the Gyro Club. In Windsor,he resumed nis friendship with
Ted :eid who by this time had returned fmon pg work in NY. They were very close
buddies and Ted was our doctor. lie was much beloved. He looked af cer rum there
when she had serious bloodpolsoning in her hands and elso took out my tonsils.
I neglected to,metnion that when Dad was working in !iddleton 1918-19, he wes
in'a fire. Veliantly he rescued some girl from the flames. In so doing he
caught his little finger in the fire escape and tore it so badly that it had
to be amputated. That explaine his funny 'little finger'. e was kind of proud
@mf that thopghe He curled in Windsor end liked that very much. He also did a lot
- «#ork gratis for the Childrens Aid,finding homes, delivering children, etc.

I used to spend some Saturdays at the Jall which was :n the bu lding .n which
he worked - the prisoners were very nice to me. Dad never seemed to incur

the hostility of those whom he fined or sentenced...and he sentenced plenty.

He was busy there - it was depression times. Our house was near the RR and was
a marked house. Mum always had some beans on the stove and she fed hundreds

in those days. One cold day we had a fire in the fireplace. I had just got up
&nd had on a kimono. I got too close to the falmes and it caught fire. One of
the hobo's, wno was waiting for something to eat was in the r00.i, grabbed me
rolled me in a mat and dousea ik flame and saved me frum » vad burn or even
death. Perhays their kindness to these wanderius en paid off. Never wes anyone
turned away. Often they wouls do an odd job around the placeyumuse 0ften thuy wo
Just get food. DBaseball was big in Windsor. Dad was manager of one of the
teams. Cousin Eugene Lockhart would co e down from the States and pdayed. Le was
a terrific player and made a big name for himself as a kid phenom pitcher. He
was piltching when 15 and 16 and 17 and was about the best in Nova Scotia. I
used to go to the games with iHum,and Dad would be at the players bench - I woulc
be there too sometimes. Occasionally we would travel to Canning or Kentville or
Bantsport - and other places too. Murray Fader played also and was a good
pitcher - he was & natural athlete and as strong ~s a horse. They came back
from the States in the early 30's. Mum's father,Ben,used to spend most of his
time at our house in Windsor but when Aunt Ann came back he would spend more
there. He made that his real home and died there finelly at 89. Ye was a lit.le
man, not much more than 5 féet tall. He went to ses at aged 12 as Cabin Boy.

e became a first mate and then became deaf and never became & Captain. Iie had

" ) settle at being a Cook, but cooks made best pay. He also had a bad fall and
dad a serious rupture. He was a twinkly man with deep blue eyes and kindly
smile. He read a great deal - perhaps that iswhere Mum gets her love of books.
He was always giving his grandchildren nickles and dimes with his big smile.

He smoked a pipe continuously and his moustache was stained with tobacco jaice,
He saw a lot of this 0ld world and one time Le was away from home for % full

years (thet was 1894-96) - Imagine! There was great love and warmth in that
home. You have scen evidence of 4t amone the siatars o 34+ o417 mowcd cda
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The Windsor days were good days - busy days — family days. We did not have a

" car there but somehow we got around hither and yon. Tillie Brown (now Erightma:)

lived with us one year and went to school. Wilfred Dimock(Fred's boy) was with
us a 1ot a8 he took h s Grade 10. Lewis Lockhart and Raymo:d were around a
lot t00. We never knew when they would be along for a meal. Dad accepted all of
Mum's people like his own and we were one big extended family. I had a great
feeling of having big brothers although I was an only child. They teased the
1life out of me but I liked the attention and they all played ball end included
me occasimally in a game of catch. I guess I was fairly precocious at 5 or 6
in throwing and catching. Gene was ahero to me and I liked them all very much.
Harlie Lockhart was 6 mos. older and Howie Fader 10 .o08. younger and we were
quite close. How was like a brother to me,and still is,and Harlie seems very
close t00., I felt that at the funeral. We spent a lot of our little boy time
together. How and Harlie never had that feeling for each other as I did for
each of them. They were perhaps not thrown together as mach as I was with each
of them.

S0 the Windsor years went on. I started school there and my first real memorie
are attached there. I won't go into that now. .um had one or Iwo miscarriages
while we lived there. I think that contributed_to a mild breakdown which she
experienced in th. 30's when we lived in Hfx. I had my thorat accident too.

Then another breek came. Judge Ernest I, Blois was Head of the Social

Welfare Dept for the province. He had had 8o1e contact with Dad in co nnection
with soue of the extra work Dad had done regarding children in the Windsor

area,and apparently had his eye on this young naan. In 1933 the Tories were
licked and Angus .. ilacDonald swept into victory. Part of the platform was the
promise of Uld Age Pensions. Part of the success of the victory,incidentally,

was the power of th: editorials written by Uacle George in the Hfx. Chronicle.

—

One day Dad was in Truro and met ifr. Blois by chance at the station. Out of
the blue that huge man(6'4") asked Dad how he would like to move to Efx.

mad was felbbergasted. Blolsz said that he had been watching him and felt that
_£ Dad was going to do the kind of work he had been doing he night as well be
paid for it. He gave him no assurance though. A man in Cape Breton wh. had run
an election and been licked was after the job Blois had in mind for Dad. ad
came home with great hopes but did not want to ralse them too highe But Blois'
desire prevailed and the offer came to beco e Assistant Director of O0ld Age
Pensions and Chief Inspector of O0ld Age Pensions. He was 32 at the time. It
meant setting up the whole organigzation. It is curious that at the Fu .eral
Home the other day Bill Dunlop & Hfx Lawyermformerly of Wiidsor and longtime
friend of Dad,told me that Dgd's appointment was not a political appointment.
He got the job, Bill stated, because Flois felt he was the man for the job and
wanted him. That new job started Dec. 1933. Mum was pregnant and not well.

We moved to Three ifile Plains and spent the winter with the Faders. ltbwas one
of the happiest times of my life except Dad was in Hfx. 211 week. But he would
coie horte every Sat night for the weskend. It wes called the 'winter of the
big snew'. He often walked 3 miles from the Windsor station in hip-high snow,
but he rarely failed to make it. He worked tertdibly hard - often til midnite,
night af.er night,for thehandsome sum of 2200a month. liowe and I went to the

2 mile Plain school -~ I was in 3 schools thai year - Windsor,3 M.Pl. and Le-
Merchent in Hfx. It was Grade 2. Ted Reld used to visit quite often. Mum lost
the baby. It was a hard time for her. It was good that Aunt Ann was with her.
Theybhave always been closer than breathing and nearer than hands and feet to
each other. Then in a8y we moved to Hfx. - 158 Jubllae Rd. It was unpeved then
and the dust used to float into the house something awaful. Another phase of
our femily life began. ,

Dad joined St. Andrew's Church. He was %0 be a feithful member,Sunday Sch.
Supt.,Elder, etc. for 41 years. lie re-joined Gyro,became its Presiden sBull.
Editor and senior citizenjhe tood up bowling -fh&tf#asE Ly Bhe EEERD BPde.
employees league; helped or:anize the Credit Union; played poker with cronies
one ni;nht & week with a $2 Iimitjjoined North British Soc. and became rres.
later on (one of Lis proudcst moments)and entered very deeply into the life
of the community. He was Fres. of the Léidarchant Home and School. And he

worked ver: hard at ris job and became recognized for his ability and hozour.
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Oyr house on Jubilee Rd. was also a marked one for the Depression victius,
They would pass all elong the line and knock on our door. He always was willing
to provide a bed - had an arrangement whereby he gave a chit w..ich when pre-
sented to the Salvati.n Army would gain edtry for a bed and a bit of food.

We had no car of our own in Hfx. but occasio ally he would get a govi. car
™ for 5¢ a mile. And souetimes he would coabine a business trip with a pleasure
trip. He was scrupulous about expense accounts. lle was very careful to make
exact accounting for his use of the car and in any undertaking he took for
the govt. In 1937 we had a trip around the Cabot Trail. We took llargaret Farq
and BEdwina Fulton with us. It was a great time..although the road(trail) was
dangerous. In 1938 we went to USA. What a thrill. The first 2 weeks of July.
Dad rented a car for that and we took Gram along. I slept with Gram on the way
and Dad of course bunked with Mum. It cost $1 per bed at Lincoln,aine, in a
beautiful home. That's what it was like in the Depression. I saw nmy first
Pro ball game - Dad, Uncle Harry Dill and I saw the Red Sox in a doublehcader
a ainst the Yankees. I will never forget thatl - and the bogtime planeysr 1 saw
in action that day. Then in 1939 the biggest thrill of all - May 1,1939 -~ Lugh]
came along. Mum and Dad jokingly always blamed him on the USA trip the summer
before. I had prayed for him as lon as I could remem.er. Dad and ium let me
name him. I chose my favourite name - Hugh - which I first heard in the book
read to us in school. Glengarry School Days. The chief boy in that story was
'Hugh'. The Allan was the old Scottish family name. S0 he became Hugh Allan.
It was a difficult birth - he arrived the wrong way. ium was 39 years old
and there were complications. I sensed that tiings were touch and go but Dad
didn't say much. I knew he was worried though. The .ay lst was a snowy day
I recall - a freak snow-storm. um got phlebitis and was in hp. for 3 weeiks.
Hughie's coming home wasone of the biggest in my life. I was the proudest kid
in the eity. I was in Grade 7 at Le:archant Sehool. So the circle of family
love was enlarged..and now the first break hag come. We have been given many
years together though. There are things that cone to mind of those late 30's.
sitting on Dad's shoulders at the circus one day to see over others' heads.
Going to ball ames at tue Wanderers 7ield....Sat. afternoon at the Family
theatre - a marathon, two f atures, a serial, trailers, éartoon, news - all
for 25¢ ~ 10 for me and 15 for hime....walking to and from church..he vent
every Sunday without fail...his swinging me along b.-side him as we wal ed
with his great mtkdm= strides... his being so full of the devil,doing silly
dances, iaking crazy faces, mimicing som:one we all knew,sleeping on the
chesterfield while I pret:nded to play basketbell in the Jub. Rd. front room,

telling e of the family background....reading together,i4um he and I..wild
Sunday afternoons when Hary Farq. would visit us...walking with Uncle Geo., and
Dad home from church,many,many Sundays....going to Hants Co. and visiting all
the relatives....watch him tesse ijum when she was too lazy to go to the bath-
room,making essssssss noise that made her want to pee all the .ore...chasing
her .pstairs as she raced up pulling up her dress trying to make it in time
..and him after her goosing her along the way,and her pretending not to like
it....fun-times, nutty ti :es,precious times. He was a great whistler - all the
time whistling...and he could sleep anywhere,anytime. He had very good health
- a couple of under-arm cysts along the way, the odd cold, but otherwise
excellent health. He loved to eat and ik began to show afier he got the car
around 1949-50,and he stopped walking twice a day back and forth to work.

He was full of fun. Gram's presence was always somewhat of a blanket on our
life together and it was always better when she wasn't there. um was patient
and Dad was forebearing,but he felt a deep resp nsibility to his mother and
before she died it cost him a great deal of .ioney to keep her looked after.
He refused to allow her to apply for Old Age Pension,even though she could
pase the Heans test. He felt that people would only point the finger to him
and clainm that he was using his positi n. He also took some responsibility forx
Aunt Eliza and Uncle John — that was beyond his obligation, but he did 1it.




